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          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I am Peter

          3  Vallone, and I chair the Public Safety Committee.

          4                 Today we consider three bills, Intro.

          5  598, sponsored by myself, makes it a crime to

          6  operate a motorvehicle or construction vehicle while

          7  intoxicated or impaired by drugs at a construction

          8  site, or to enter upon a construction site under the

          9  influence of alcohol or drugs.

         10                 Intro. 509, sponsored by Council

         11  Member Lopez, requires callers to 3-1-1 system to

         12  identify themselves by name and address if the

         13  nature of their complaint requires a dispatch of the

         14  police, fire or EMS, and makes it a crime if such a

         15  call is false.

         16                 Intro. 393, sponsored by Council

         17  Member Addabbo, who we'll hear from soon, makes it a

         18  misdemeanor to use a City agency for service to

         19  harass another person or entity.

         20                 Beginning with 598, which I

         21  sponsored, this is in response to a news item

         22  several months ago that filmed construction workers

         23  leaving a construction site, entering a bar for

         24  lunch, and then returning to that construction site

         25  immediately after they've been to the bar.
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          2                 I was concerned that these workers

          3  can endanger themselves or others by returning to a

          4  very dangerous work site while intoxicated.

          5                 We were further concerned when we

          6  discovered that according to US Department of Labor,

          7  Occupational Safety and Health Administration, OSHA,

          8  and the US Department of Health and Human Services,

          9  construction workers have the highest rates among

         10  employees of drug use and heavy drinking.

         11                 Unbelievably, there is no federal,

         12  state or local law, which makes it illegal to

         13  operate heavy machinery at a construction site while

         14  intoxicated or impaired by drugs, or even to enter a

         15  construction site while intoxicated or impaired.

         16                 Construction workers play a vital

         17  role in the City's life by building its offices,

         18  homes, and skyscrapers. The nature of construction

         19  work, however, is very dangerous. It's inherently

         20  dangerous to the construction workers, to the people

         21  surrounding the site, and ultimately to the people

         22  that live and work in the building.

         23                 We must send a clear message today,

         24  booze and bulldoze don't mix. My bill addresses

         25  these issues by making it illegal to operate a motor
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          2  vehicle on a construction site while intoxicated and

          3  to enter that site while in this condition.

          4                 Intro 509 deals with the use of

          5  City's 3-1-1 system to report false emergencies that

          6  require the dispatch of the police, fire, or EMS.

          7  Under the State's law it's illegal to submit a false

          8  report to a law enforcement agency. Although these

          9  agencies include, but not limited to police and

         10  other law enforcement departments, it is not clear

         11  whether a false report to 3-1-1 will be prohibited

         12  under the State statute. Council Member Lopez is on

         13  her way and will speak in more detail about this.

         14  Intro. 393, sponsored by Council Member Addabbo,

         15  also deals with 3-1-1, but focuses on the Department

         16  of Buildings. There were many calls as we've been

         17  all aware of to the Department of Buildings, which

         18  are just designed to harass. Under the current law,

         19  DOB is obligated to investigate each complaint it

         20  receives and callers don't have to give their name

         21  and address.

         22                 Let me, before we move any further,

         23  call on Council Member Addabbo, to speak about his

         24  bill.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Thank you,
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          2  Chair Vallone. And I want to thank you and your

          3  staff for allowing us to have this hearing today,

          4  and I want to thank the Administration for being

          5  here today and their time.

          6                 This Intro. 393, is really a product

          7  of constituents' complaints to my office, and when

          8  we were tracking our constituent complaints, we saw

          9  more and more, more than one time that a constituent

         10  was complaining about being harassed by an

         11  inspector, whether it be Fire Department or

         12  Building, and we normally found out that soon --

         13  well, prior to the inspection, they might have had a

         14  minor altercation with their neighbor, and more and

         15  more as my staff did the investigative work, we

         16  found that these inspectors are being used for

         17  harassment purposes.

         18                 Now, our City inspectors are not

         19  unlimited in number. We are not blessed with an

         20  infinite number of inspectors. The inspectors that

         21  we do have in this City do great work, but they are

         22  limited in number and they should not be wasting

         23  their time just as a tool for somebody who has an

         24  axe to grind against their neighbor. And because of

         25  that and because, again, we do want our inspectors
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          2  to do the valid work on the credible calls, I felt

          3  that this Intro was required to make sure that,

          4  again, somebody who does use our City agencies or

          5  our City inspectors for harassment purposes only,

          6  should be punished in some way.

          7                 And, again, it's basically due to the

          8  fact that our building inspectors have other things,

          9  you know, other calls, more credible to do than,

         10  again, just being used as a tool for harassment.

         11                 So, I again this Committee and their

         12  time and I look forward to the testimony of those

         13  here today.

         14                 Thank you very much.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you,

         16  Council Member Addabbo, for introducing this

         17  measure. And we have with us here to begin the

         18  testimony, we have Stephen Kramer from the

         19  Department of Buildings, Sue Petito from the NYPD

         20  Legal Division, Captain Ronald Peifer, also from the

         21  NYPD and Lawrence Knafo, the First Deputy

         22  Commissioner for the Department of Information and

         23  Technology, DoITT.

         24                 I believe we'll be hearing from Mr.

         25  Knafo and the others who are here to answer
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          2  questions. Although if that's incorrect -- Mr.

          3  Kramer is also testifying? Okay. Okay, then you may

          4  begin in whatever order you believe fit, and let me

          5  welcome you here and thank you for coming down.

          6                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER KNAFO: Good

          7  morning. Good morning, Chairman Vallone, and members

          8  of the Committee on Public Safety.

          9                 My name is Lawrence Knafo, and I am

         10  the First Deputy Commissioner for the City's

         11  Department of Information Technology and

         12  Telecommunications, otherwise known as DoITT.

         13                 With me today is Dean Schloyer, who

         14  is the Executive Director of 3-1-1. Thank you,

         15  again, for having us here to testify today in

         16  respect to Intro. No. 509.

         17                 Since its inception, 3-1-1 has

         18  dramatically improved the manner in which New

         19  Yorkers are able to contact government and receive

         20  government services.

         21                 A Hallmark of 3-1-1 success has been

         22  its emphasis on and success in providing equal

         23  access to government by all New Yorkers.

         24                 Prior to the inception of 3-1-1, City

         25  agencies received roughly 6 million calls per year.
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          2  Last year alone 3-1-1 handled nearly 12 million

          3  calls and for the coming year we're estimating that

          4  3-1-1 will handle nearly 15 million calls.

          5                 This dramatic increase in call volume

          6  signifies the desire and necessity of contacting

          7  government to obtain critical services and support.

          8                 While the Administration agrees that

          9  abusing any government system for purposes of

         10  retaliation, whether 3-1-1, 9-1-1 or through

         11  alternate means of access to government is

         12  inappropriate and should not be tolerated, we have

         13  significant concerns over how this bill is

         14  structured.

         15                 There are five primary reasons why we

         16  currently disagree with the bill as written. First,

         17  for the majority of calls to 3-1-1, calls which are

         18  strictly informational, there is no valid reason to

         19  capture caller information.

         20                 Doing so would prove costly and

         21  ultimately degrade a caller's experience.

         22                 Second, the manner that calls are

         23  handled at 3-1-1 is based on agency expertise and

         24  knowledge of their environment.

         25                 Where necessary, 3-1-1 does in fact
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          2  collect caller information; however,

          3  indiscriminately collecting information will not

          4  necessarily add value, while it may make callers

          5  less likely to report problems through 3-1-1.

          6                 Third, we believe that self-reporting

          7  of caller information will prove to be inaccurate

          8  and unreliable.

          9                 Fourth, the collection of caller

         10  information will discourage the use of the 3-1-1

         11  system by undocumented residents.

         12                 And finally, the requirement to

         13  capture information at 3-1-1 will lead to increase

         14  in the amount of time required to dispatch emergency

         15  resources to the scene of an emergency.

         16                 Before providing more explanation

         17  behind these reasons, it's worth taking a moment to

         18  understand how different types of calls are handled

         19  at 3-1-1.

         20                 Calls to 3-1-1 are categorized in the

         21  three distinct call types. Directory assistance,

         22  information requests, and service requests.

         23                 Director assistance calls include

         24  calls where a caller is trying to determine the

         25  appropriate agency to handle a specific matter or
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          2  where they are looking to contact an agency

          3  directly.

          4                 Information requests include those

          5  calls where a caller is looking for basic

          6  information regarding City services. For instance, a

          7  caller asked the hours of the operation of their

          8  local library.

          9                 Finally, service requests are calls

         10  where detailed caller information is obtained by the

         11  3-1-1 call takers, that an agency can be dispatched

         12  to deal with a problem or issue.

         13                 Since our inception nearly two years

         14  ago, the majority of calls to 3-1-1 fall to the

         15  Directory Assistance and Information Request

         16  categories.

         17                 These calls account for nearly 70

         18  percent of the volume received at 3-1-1. This is a

         19  noteworthy fact because of the nature of these

         20  calls.

         21                 Since information requests and

         22  directory assistance calls are merely requests for

         23  information, call takers at 3-1-1 do not collect any

         24  caller information whatsoever when servicing

         25  callers.
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          2                 Adding a requirement to collect

          3  caller information in these cases would adversely

          4  affect the caller experience and significantly drive

          5  up the cost of calls to 3-1-1, the number of

          6  operators required to take calls, the length of

          7  calls to 3-1-1, and ultimately increase the time

          8  callers are required to wait before speaking with an

          9  operator.

         10                 For the remainder of our calls

         11  service requests, 3-1-1 has worked with agencies

         12  during the past two years to define the best way to

         13  handle these calls based on the agency's areas of

         14  expertise.

         15                 In fact, there are different rules

         16  surrounding each of our service requests, and these

         17  rules are based on the agency's years of experience

         18  providing service in these areas.

         19                 For instance, based on the Sanitation

         20  Department business requirements, 3-1-1 will not

         21  take a request to remove a refrigerator or air

         22  conditioner, unless the caller provides valid

         23  contact information.

         24                 This rule is in place so the

         25  Sanitation Department can validate the appointment
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          2  prior to dispatching resources.

          3                 On the other hand, the Department of

          4  Buildings dictates and in fact encourages 3-1-1 to

          5  accept anonymous complaints for issues such as

          6  unsafe work conditions at the construction sites.

          7                 In fact, you'll see large signs

          8  posted at construction sites throughout the City

          9  encouraging workers to call 3-1-1 anonymously if

         10  they feel that their construction site is unsafe.

         11                 In this case, the ability to report

         12  problems anonymously is directly in line with the

         13  Building Department's strategic direction and

         14  ultimately makes work sites safer for construction

         15  workers.

         16                 Similarly, the Police Department only

         17  requires 3-1-1 to collect enough information to

         18  dispatch the police to the scene of a quality of

         19  life incident.

         20                 For example, a caller filing a noise

         21  complaint or a complaint about disorderly youths or

         22  public intoxication, may be required to provide the

         23  location or address of the infraction only.

         24                 Callers have the option of leaving

         25  detailed contact information, but in order to
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          2  encourage the reporting of these incidents, contact

          3  information is not required.

          4                 In fact, much like 9-1-1, 3-1-1 does

          5  not rely upon self-reported information as a basis

          6  for conducting investigation. Rather we believe that

          7  the person who is inclined to make a practice of

          8  filing false and/or baseless quality of life

          9  complaints to 3-1-1 is exactly the type of person

         10  who would register a false name or address when

         11  asked, or worse, give an actual name and address

         12  that are not their own.

         13                 Instead of relying on self-reported

         14  information, 3-1-1 has followed the lead of 9-1-1

         15  and used automated phone company information when an

         16  investigation is necessary.

         17                 For instance, in the past we have

         18  received calls by people making threats against

         19  public officials, we've referred these calls to the

         20  police.

         21                 When appropriate, the police then use

         22  automated caller identification information to

         23  determine where the call originated from.

         24                 We believe that this process is much

         25  more accurate than relying on self-reported
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          2  information.

          3                 Another area where the requirement to

          4  collect personal information would be problematic is

          5  in calls by people that are not US legal residents.

          6                 As we have learned from various

          7  immigrant advocacy groups, these callers are very

          8  concerned when calling government. However, they are

          9  still entitled to many of our services, and

         10  frequently call 3-1-1 for assistance.

         11                 This is one of the reasons that we've

         12  expanded our language capabilities to handle calls

         13  in over 170 languages.

         14                 By requiring the collection of caller

         15  information, we would deter these groups from

         16  calling 3-1-1, which would ultimately lead to a

         17  decrease in the provision of services they need.

         18                 Finally, the requirement to capture

         19  caller information of 3-1-1 in calls resulting in

         20  the dispatch of police, fire and medical services,

         21  could lead to significant delays in dispatching

         22  emergency resources.

         23                 Whenever a call is received at 3-1-1

         24  that requires an emergency response, the call is

         25  immediately transferred to 9-1-1. When these calls
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          2  are received 3-1-1 operators do not waste any time

          3  collecting caller information and focus on getting

          4  the caller to 9-1-1 as fast as possible.

          5                 It's not until a 9-1-1 operator is on

          6  the line that information is collected, and when

          7  information is collected, it's only done so by a

          8  9-1-1 operator.

          9                 In cases when a 3-1-1 caller reports

         10  a crime or emergency situation in progress, these

         11  calls are absolutely transferred to 9-1-1. If the

         12  police then determine that the call was a false

         13  alarm, we encourage them to take the same actions

         14  that they would in the case of a false report to

         15  9-1-1.

         16                 New Yorkers value their privacy and

         17  callers to 3-1-1 have an expectation of privacy

         18  regarding the information they convey when making a

         19  complaint.

         20                 This is perhaps best evidenced by the

         21  fact that nearly half of all Police Department

         22  service requests to 3-1-1 are filed anonymously.

         23  Service requests, including all types of quality of

         24  life calls, graffiti, fireworks, public urination,

         25  bikes, rollerboard, skateboard complaints, abandoned
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          2  vehicles and blocked driveways. To now require

          3  callers to provide personal information that goes

          4  well beyond what is necessary for the delivery of

          5  services is simply unnecessary.

          6                 In fact, the mere requirement to

          7  collect personal information may be just enough to

          8  stop a caller from calling 3-1-1 in the first place.

          9  And as agencies become more and more reliant on

         10  using 3-1-1 information as a key indicator on where

         11  they should focus their efforts, this possibility is

         12  of great concern to this Administration.

         13                 While it's possible to collect

         14  information and keep it confidential, the real issue

         15  here is the perception on the part of the caller and

         16  the lack of value added by collecting that

         17  information.

         18                 3-1-1 can certainly inform callers

         19  that their personal information will kept

         20  confidential, such assurances will not necessarily

         21  comfort the person who does not wish to provide his

         22  or her information in the first place.

         23                 While the threat of retaliation

         24  always exists, whether information is collective or

         25  not, right now callers are sure that the government
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          2  cannot release information it does not have.

          3                 The fact of this information will

          4  probably not be useful in an investigation anyway,

          5  it makes its collection even less worthwhile.

          6                 While in its current form we do not

          7  support this legislation, we do recognize its

          8  intended value.

          9                 We believe that the City has a vested

         10  interest in assuring the dispatch of police and

         11  other City resources does not occur based on false

         12  or baseless reports.

         13                 However, rather than passing

         14  legislation focusing specifically on 3-1-1, we

         15  believe that an across the board approach is

         16  necessary.

         17                 There are multiple channels for

         18  contacting government, of which 3-1-1 is just one.

         19  Instead of focusing this effort on a specific action

         20  of 3-1-1, we believe the law should focus on holding

         21  those that abuse the use of City resources

         22  accountable, however they do it.

         23                 I would be happy to answer any

         24  questions you may have.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: You're testimony
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          2  would be on the same matter or?

          3                 MR. KRAMER: Yes, and on the other

          4  matter.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay. We'll take

          6  both, your testimony also then.

          7                 MR. KRAMER: Good morning, Chair

          8  Vallone and members of the Committee on Public

          9  Safety. My name is Stephen Kramer, and I'm Chief of

         10  Staff of the New York City Department of Buildings.

         11                 I'm here to speak on two bills,

         12  Intro. 393, in relation to sanctions attached to

         13  making a false complaint to the Department regarding

         14  a code violation, and Intro. 598 in relation to the

         15  presence of intoxicated persons on construction

         16  sites.

         17                 While the Department shares the

         18  concerns underlying both of these bills, we cannot

         19  support them as drafted.

         20                 First, as to Intro. 393. This bill

         21  proposes to add to the Department's current title 26

         22  authority to prosecute knowingly made false

         23  statements regarding in violation the code.

         24                 It proposes further to add a new

         25  section to Title 12, making a misdemeanor for one to
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          2  knowingly cause or attempt to cause the harassment

          3  of another.

          4                 The Administration does not believe

          5  these provisions add anything to the current set of

          6  tools available to prosecute who make false

          7  complaints.

          8                 In this regard, I refer you to

          9  Administrative Code Section 26-124, which already

         10  provides that it is a misdemeanor for any person to

         11  knowingly make a false statement.

         12                 Similarly, penal law 240.26 makes it

         13  a criminal offense to engage in the course of

         14  conduct or repeatedly commit acts that alarm or

         15  seriously annoy another without legitimate purpose.

         16                 As to Intro. 598 regarding

         17  intoxication and drugs use at construction site, the

         18  Administration and our Department very much shares

         19  the Committee's concerns and supports the intent and

         20  purposes of this bill. Drugs and alcohol have no

         21  place whatsoever in the workplace.

         22                 However, the proposal before you

         23  raises a number of questions, and a number of issues

         24  that are likely to call for further review.

         25                 First, there is the question of the

                                                            21

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  definition, what is a construction site? Do these

          3  provisions affect homeowners working on their decks

          4  or replacing windows, sipping a beer? And are public

          5  street excavations covered as well as private sites.

          6                 We suggest crafting a specific

          7  definition of this key phrase.

          8                 Second, the reference to operation of

          9  a construction vehicle should be clarified to

         10  indicate whether an operation is meant to include

         11  not only the driver, but also a person operating the

         12  vehicle in any other manner. For example, moving a

         13  crane.

         14                 Third, because it does not generally

         15  apply on private property, the vehicle and traffic

         16  law on which this bill is modeled does not seem

         17  capable of being the basis to compel a construction

         18  worker to submit to a chemical analysis of blood.

         19                 Fourth, it is not clear who has

         20  authority to conduct and process the tests.

         21                 The current system under the VTL is

         22  predicated on the request of a police officer, while

         23  the bill appears to be intended to carry that system

         24  over to construction sites. For the reasons noted,

         25  that fit is imperfect, and the draft leaves the gap
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          2  unaddressed.

          3                 As noted, the presence of drug and

          4  alcohol, or intoxicated workers on construction

          5  sites, is an important issue for the Department.

          6                 We recognize that impairment by drug

          7  or alcohol use constitutes a workplace hazard, a

          8  hazard as you noted in your introduction, both to

          9  the public and to other workers, whether they're

         10  operating vehicles, operating other machinery, for

         11  example, cranes, excavators, hoists or carrying

         12  materials on a scaffold, we strongly support

         13  comprehensive drug-free workforce programs,

         14  particularly at construction sites where operating

         15  machinery and carrying materials above sidewalks and

         16  streets are involved.

         17                 But a comprehensive drug and

         18  alcohol-free workforce includes many approaches, not

         19  simple breathalizer tests on machinery operators.

         20                 OSHA has articulated five critical

         21  parts for a successful program to reduce alcohol and

         22  drug use in the workplace.

         23                 First, the employer needs to have an

         24  articulated and clear policy.

         25                 Second, the employer must train the
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          2  supervisor on the site.

          3                 Third, there must be an extensive

          4  employee education program, essentially to have the

          5  employees and unions present to buy in.

          6                 Four, there must be an effective

          7  employee assistance program to assist the other

          8  workers who have drug or alcohol-related problems.

          9                 And, five, there must be alcohol and

         10  drug testing, and on the construction sites we would

         11  suggest that that be done by police personnel, not

         12  by inspectors who are not peace officers and who do

         13  not carry arms.

         14                 These policies can be particularly

         15  effective when union representatives are engaged in

         16  crafting them and are supportive of them along with

         17  management.

         18                 They can reduce workplace hazards,

         19  and reduce insurance rates for the employer.

         20                 OSHA, the federal Occupational Safety

         21  and Health Administration, has extensive expertise

         22  on this issue, and will be happy to share with you

         23  further thoughts on the problem.

         24                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         25  comment on these bills.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you, Mr.

          3  Kramer.

          4                 Let me first recognize the fact that

          5  we've been joined by Council Member Katz, Council

          6  Member Yassky, and Council Member Gonzalez, the

          7  Chair of this Committee, Subcommittee on Juvenile

          8  Justice.

          9                 We're going to begin with the alcohol

         10  and the drug sites bill, because Margarita Lopez is

         11  still on her way, and I would like her to be part of

         12  the discussion on the other bills, so hopefully

         13  she'll be here soon, and we'll turn to Council

         14  Member Addabbo to start that, when we get into it.

         15                 Mr. Kramer, thank you for your

         16  testimony. You state that a comprehensive drug and

         17  alcohol-free workplace includes many approaches, not

         18  simply breathalizer tests and machine operators, and

         19  we agree wholeheartedly, there must be a complete

         20  program here, but a sanction is a pretty important

         21  element of that program, and I think you'll agree

         22  with the intent of our bill, and we appreciate your

         23  input. You've come up with a few very good

         24  suggestions on how to make this bill even better. We

         25  look forward to even working with you on the
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          2  definition of a construction site. Can we ask you

          3  right here how you suggest we would define

          4  construction site?

          5                 MR. KRAMER: There are two

          6  possibilities that come to mind. One would be on

          7  sites that are permitted by the Department on which

          8  construction activities take place. Although there

          9  may be some limited instances, for example, where we

         10  issue permits for electrical work, which is minor in

         11  nature but overall I think that using the permit

         12  might be something that would be useful.

         13                 Secondly, something which I mentioned

         14  in my testimony is where other agencies such as the

         15  Department of Transportation or DEP issued permits,

         16  they're very significant as well all know, amount of

         17  work that goes on in the public streets with heavy

         18  equipment near gas mains, water mains and the like,

         19  and their disruption can, of course, be, you know,

         20  tremendously hazardous.

         21                 Although the public utilities have a

         22  pretty good record in this area, and it's not

         23  something that comes from the Department's

         24  jurisdiction, that is another field where you might

         25  want to consider extending the bill.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay, thank you.

          3                 It will be a simple matter, I

          4  believe, to do as you suggest and define operation

          5  to include people other than the driver, which is a

          6  good suggestion. You say that our law doesn't seem

          7  capable of compelling a construction worker to

          8  submit to a chemical analysis, which we will

          9  probably be able to write into the law, I believe;

         10  do you have a comment on that?

         11                 MR. KRAMER: Well, I'm not an expert

         12  on Fourth Amendment Search and Seizure Law, but the

         13  question of gaining consent to a test is one that,

         14  is one that we've struggled with. The theory, the

         15  legal theory behind breathalizer tests for operators

         16  of motor vehicles, is that motor vehicles are using

         17  -- the drivers are using the public highway, and

         18  there's an implied consent which actually the

         19  legislature has articulated in New York and the

         20  courts have referred to in other states, which if

         21  you're using the public highway and you have a

         22  driver's license, there's an implied consent that

         23  you take a, that you subject yourself to a

         24  breathalizer test, notwithstanding that there may

         25  not be probable cause for the police officer to stop
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          2  you. The penalty is primarily revocation of the

          3  license to drive.

          4                 On a construction site, where we've

          5  struggled with that issue, since there is no implied

          6  consent that we can't tie to the vehicle and traffic

          7  law, or the use of the public highways, there is a

          8  Fourth Amendment issue and there have been statutes

          9  regarding, for example, been directed apparently

         10  toward young people near college campuses, which

         11  require breathalizer tests, and they have been

         12  struck down.

         13                 Here, how we could simply require

         14  random drug testing under the police power, it seems

         15  to me to raise that issue. Then of course the second

         16  issue is what's the penalty? I know that you've

         17  provided for one in your bill, but under the vehicle

         18  and traffic law, the primary penalty is revocation

         19  of a license. Since we don't license construction

         20  workers, I'm not sure what penalty we can impose. I

         21  mean, if we can't order them off the site, although

         22  that's perhaps something a police officer I think

         23  could do, certainly could pose a danger to the

         24  public or himself. But under the Building Code, that

         25  doesn't appear to be an intuitively obvious
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          2  solution.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Very valid

          4  points. Luckily I do have Fourth Amendment expert

          5  sitting on my left, my counsel Ted Baecher, and

          6  he'll be working with you to craft something. You're

          7  right, obviously there is a provision in the BTL to

          8  immediately revoke a license for someone who refuses

          9  to submit to the test. Perhaps we won't be able to

         10  do that, but we will be able to still have a

         11  sanction at the end of the day for the drunken

         12  operation of these vehicles. We'll be working with

         13  you on that also.

         14                 Let me go into some statistics

         15  regarding drug and alcohol use at construction

         16  sites.

         17                 Do you have statistics regarding

         18  injury or death that may occur at construction sites

         19  over a year's period due to alcohol or drugs?

         20                 MR. KRAMER: No, we don't.

         21                 I've seen OSHA has published

         22  statistics. I think their estimate is that

         23  approximately ten percent of workplace fatalities.

         24  In general, not just construction sites, are due to

         25  alcohol use. It's important to separate them out.
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          2  The vast majority of, as I understand it, that the

          3  majority that is of construction fatalities are

          4  actually by highway and road workers who are struck

          5  by other vehicle operators.

          6                 On the construction sites that we

          7  permit, the main injuries, the biggest source of

          8  injuries by far are falls, such as falls from

          9  scaffolds or pipe scaffolding or the other type of

         10  scaffolding over the side of a building. Although,

         11  we have had some other instances, as well, but I

         12  don't have those statistics as to alcohol use,

         13  because we don't have any testing program.

         14                 OSHA would, of course, have authority

         15  to conduct those tests at our sites and

         16  occasionally, you know, they certainly come to major

         17  incidents.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: The OSHA

         19  statistics you're quoting, those would be federal

         20  statistics, correct?

         21                 MR. KRAMER: That's correct.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: So, New York

         23  City does not keep its own statistics regarding its

         24  own construction sites?

         25                 MR. KRAMER: We don't have the power
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          2  to conduct the alcohol testing, so that's correct,

          3  we don't.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: But you would be

          5  able to get that information from OSHA and can

          6  compile your own statistics?

          7                 MR. KRAMER: If OSHA compiles the

          8  statistics, we certainly could get -- if OSHA does

          9  the testing and does that, we could.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay. The

         11  Building Code itself, does it in any way at the

         12  moment address intoxication or drug use on

         13  construction sites?

         14                 MR. KRAMER: Not that I'm aware of.

         15  Generally unsafe practices are prohibited but

         16  there's nothing that addresses drug or alcohol use

         17  at construction sites in the building code.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Are you aware of

         19  any other laws, either on a federal, State or City

         20  level that could deal with this matter?

         21                 MR. KRAMER: The only other one that

         22  I'm aware of, but I'll turn to the Police

         23  Department, is I believe that unemployment

         24  compensation, there may be rules or laws where a

         25  person who is fired or disciplined for drug or
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          2  alcohol use on the work site is not entitled to

          3  unemployment compensation. But I'd like to turn to

          4  the Police Department.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you. Just

          6  please identify yourself.

          7                 CAPTAIN RONALD PEIFER:  Captain

          8  Ronald Peifer from the Chief of Patrol's Office, the

          9  NYPD.

         10                 Reckless endangerment would cover

         11  those instances that you spoke about.

         12                 We would get a call, and based on the

         13  observations of maybe the boss, or on the

         14  observations of my police officers, they would then

         15  arrest them for a penal law violation.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: To be clear,

         17  reckless endangerment would require an additional

         18  act other than just being drunk at the wheel of the

         19  bulldozer, correct?

         20                 CAPTAIN RONALD PEIFER: I think you

         21  could probably say that driving a bulldozer while

         22  intoxicated is a danger to the person who is doing

         23  the operation and themselves.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Have there been

         25  any prosecutions that you know of under the reckless
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          2  endangerment law?

          3                 CAPTAIN RONALD PEIFER: I'm not aware

          4  of any.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I'm not either.

          6                 I believe, as a former prosecutor,

          7  you'd probably need more than just the act of

          8  getting behind a wheel, which I don't agree with,

          9  but I just think that's the way the law is. And

         10  that's much the same situation we had with Vishawn's

         11  Law (phonetic), as you know. It was not a crime, it

         12  was nothing more than drunk driving if you didn't

         13  perform some other act of recklessness, and the City

         14  Council passed a unanimous resolution backed by the

         15  Administration to change that, and Albany finally

         16  did. So, it's not that I agree with it, that it

         17  shouldn't be reckless endangerment, but I just don't

         18  believe it's ever been used to prosecute someone on

         19  a construction site.

         20                 Now, have there been any arrests that

         21  you know of on construction sites for reckless

         22  endangerment?

         23                 CAPTAIN PEIFER: Not that I'm aware

         24  of.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Who is
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          2  responsible at the moment for ensuring that there

          3  are no drugs -- I'm sorry, drunks on a construction

          4  site?

          5                 MR. KRAMER: I think in the first

          6  instance, the employer or the superintendent would

          7  be. And secondly, of course, there are union

          8  representatives, unions don't have any particular

          9  interest in having their members, needlessly

         10  endangered. Indeed to the contrary. We have worked

         11  with union representatives in many capacities, and

         12  worker safety is, of course, important to them.

         13                 And, third, as we mentioned before,

         14  OSHA is in the background.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Now, if Intro.

         16  598 became law, and I think that we'll be able to

         17  work together to come up with a law that you would

         18  support, let me ask the Police Department, how would

         19  the enforcement of this law take place, and do you

         20  have any suggestions for us regarding the law

         21  itself.

         22                 CAPTAIN PEIFER: There are two ways

         23  that the Police Department would enforce the law.

         24  Based on the observations of the Police Officer, and

         25  he would then take action. Secondly, on a call from
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          2  a concerned citizen saying that there was a crime

          3  being committed, those are the two ways that we

          4  would enforce that law.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: How would the

          6  fact that this is occurring on private property

          7  affect your enforcement?

          8                 CAPTAIN PEIFER: Drugs are illegal

          9  anywhere. So, we can arrest a person for possession

         10  of drugs on private property being the construction

         11  site.

         12                 As I said before, the operation of a

         13  bulldozer while drunk, we have reckless

         14  endangerment.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I think your

         16  research confirms what our research was, and that is

         17  that at present there is no clear sanction against

         18  drugs or alcohol in the construction site, and I

         19  think we need to work together now to make sure that

         20  we send a clear message that booze and bulldozers

         21  just don't mix.

         22                 We look forward to working with you,

         23  all of you, on crafting a law, because I believe

         24  we're very close to crafting one that you would

         25  support and you've come up with some good
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          2  suggestions.

          3                 We'll probably have some more

          4  questions about that topic, but I want to move now

          5  onto the 3-1-1 topic, and first go to Council Member

          6  Addabbo, who is the prime sponsor of one of these

          7  laws.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Thank you

          9  very much, Mr. Chair. And I want to thank those

         10  giving testimony today for being here.

         11                 Mr. Knafo, the first question here

         12  is, I want to deal with the Administration trying to

         13  resolve any differences we may have with regard to

         14  Intro. 393, and trying to find some common ground

         15  here that we can start with and go forward, but I'm

         16  trying to find it.

         17                 What I'm hearing from your testimony

         18  is that you're willing to say that, you know, you're

         19  willing to accept the anonymous calls, and if that's

         20  the case, that we're willing to accept the anonymous

         21  calls, and we're willing to accept the false claims

         22  and the false calls to our City inspectors; is that

         23  true?

         24                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER KNAFO: I

         25  think you have to look at why we accept anonymous
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          2  calls, and there are a lot of reasons.

          3                 In the buildings example I gave is,

          4  you know, the Buildings Department encourages

          5  anonymous calls because they don't feel they would

          6  get those calls otherwise.

          7                 You know, it's interesting we're

          8  talking about workplace safety on construction

          9  sites, and I think about, when you asked the Captain

         10  who would call, how would you find out about a crime

         11  going on on a work site, one of the ways would be a

         12  fellow construction worker might call, but he

         13  certainly wouldn't want to give his name. So, there

         14  are lots of reasons why we, in some cases, encourage

         15  anonymous reporting.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Let me ask

         17  you the question again, I don't think we got to the

         18  point.

         19                 If you're willing to accept anonymous

         20  calls, you're willing to accept the false claims; is

         21  that correct?

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER KNAFO: I

         23  think if you're willing to accept anonymous calls,

         24  you will at times get false claims.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Sure.
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          2                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER KNAFO: Just

          3  like we do in 9-1-1 today.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Because both

          5  your testimony and the testimony of Mr. Kramer said,

          6  you know, we don't need Intro. 393. We have Title

          7  12, we have administrative code section 26, and we

          8  could never enforce these. We could never enforce

          9  the laws, either 393 or Title 12 or Section 26. We

         10  could never enforce them because we wouldn't know

         11  who to bring the false claim against. Again, the

         12  calls were anonymous.

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER KNAFO: I

         14  guess my point is, we think you're absolutely right,

         15  that people shouldn't be making false claims to the

         16  City. And if they do, they should be prosecuted.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: How?

         18                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER KNAFO:

         19  Well, there are other ways to find out that

         20  information.

         21                 So, if we know that a claim is false,

         22  and it really results in some heinous act, where we

         23  find out, in fact, the claim was false, there was

         24  some damage that occurred from it. We can then go do

         25  an investigation. We can go to the phone company, we
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          2  can subpoena phone records, and try and find out

          3  where that phone call came from, and get a

          4  systematic record as opposed to, you know, Larry

          5  Knafo calling 3-1-1 and saying my name is Joe Jones.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: So, correct

          7  me if I'm wrong, so I make sure I understand right,

          8  then anonymous phone calls aren't really anonymous.

          9  There are ways of finding out --

         10                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER KNAFO:

         11  There are ways of finding out with the right court,

         12  you know, getting a subpoena, getting the phone

         13  company on board to help you.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Okay. So,

         15  they're not really anonymous. It actually helps

         16  because then we know who the phone calls are coming

         17  from, correct?

         18                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER KNAFO:

         19  That's right.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Okay.

         21                 See, there is some common ground.

         22  There is. There's hope yet.

         23                 Mr. Kramer, in your testimony you had

         24  mentioned that Intro. 393 may not be needed because

         25  there is Section 26-124 of the Administrative Code.
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          2  With that code, again, just regards false

          3  statements, 393 gets a little bit more specific with

          4  regards to, you know, calling upon City agencies in

          5  the form of harassment.

          6                 I think 393 makes it a little bit

          7  more specific than what is generally listed in

          8  Section 26. And therefore, I think there is a need

          9  for Intro. 393, and ultimately even for the other

         10  intro. Do you want to elaborate on that, or your

         11  opinion on that?

         12                 MR. KRAMER: I'm not sure what the

         13  real difference is between the bill that you've

         14  proposed and the existing provision. You know, I

         15  have discussed that matter at length with the Law

         16  Department, which perhaps would be helpful.

         17                 I do know that these provisions

         18  exist, and I believe that a citizen who believes

         19  that he or she has been the victim of a false

         20  complaint, can file a complaint herself with the

         21  local Police Department, which can then investigate

         22  it, and there actually are some provisions for

         23  proceeding on the basis of the citizen complaint.

         24                 I think the problem of harassment

         25  from anonymous calls that you've articulated is a
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          2  real one. The question is, is whether or not the

          3  cure is worse than the disease. I mean, they're

          4  clearly, as we all remember from the eighties and

          5  nineties, when there were just huge numbers of false

          6  fire alarms, that this was really, the false alarm

          7  presents a danger, not only because of the accidents

          8  that may occur when the emergency vehicle is on the

          9  way to the scene, but it's also a distraction from

         10  the real mission, and takes up energy, and

         11  resources. And of course, we have that problem as

         12  well.

         13                 But on the other hand, there's a

         14  benefit to be received from getting complaints, such

         15  as anonymous complaints from construction sites on

         16  alcohol use.

         17                 I mean, we feel fairly certain that

         18  if someone were required to give his name on a

         19  construction site, say, you know, my name is John

         20  Jones, and you know, there's, you know, a crane

         21  operator who is drunk, I think that would, it's the

         22  Building Commissioner's considered judgment that

         23  we'd rather go to the site and find that there's no

         24  problem, than not have that call come in.

         25                 And so we specifically put up,
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          2  require the placement of a sign this past year that

          3  it be an anonymous, assurance that the complaint be

          4  anonymous.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Mr. Kramer,

          6  again, I look forward to your further conversations

          7  with the Police Department on this matter. I think

          8  that is helpful for the residents of the City.

          9                 And I also agree with you, when you

         10  say, you know, the limited resources we have with

         11  City inspectors, and obviously the toll it takes on

         12  our financial situation in this City, as these City

         13  inspectors go out to possibly answer false claims.

         14                 So, again, there is some more common

         15  ground and I do agree with you, and that's why I

         16  think also Intro. 393 does address that situation

         17  directly and more specifically than any law that

         18  exists now.

         19                 So, again, I look to further the

         20  conversation in hopes of that we can come to some

         21  agreement on Intro. 393.

         22                 I hate to bounce around, but Mr.

         23  Knafo, a question on your testimony, on page three.

         24                 You said getting information from a

         25  3-1-1 caller, contact information, name and address,
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          2  the fact that this information would not be useful

          3  in an investigation anyway, makes its collection

          4  even less worthwhile.

          5                 See, I would think that information

          6  is rather useful when looking to see if they have

          7  made a false claim. Can you explain that a little

          8  bit further?

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER KNAFO:

         10  Sure. That goes back to my statement that a lot of

         11  times when people are filing false reports, they

         12  will give a fake name, or they'll give someone

         13  else's name. And over the past two years, a few

         14  incidents that have been brought to my attention

         15  about false reports being filed at 3-1-1 have had

         16  exactly that. It was when we went to find out who

         17  the reporting person was, from what we found out, it

         18  typically turned out to be fake. It was either a

         19  fake name, it was somebody else's name that was

         20  given. And when we talked to the people that had the

         21  report filed against them, they actually thought

         22  they knew who did it, and it had nothing to do with

         23  the names that we had. So, it ended up wasting a lot

         24  of time.

         25                 When if it was the police doing the
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          2  investigation, you know, they would have been able

          3  to get to the phone company records and figure out

          4  exactly where that phone call came from.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Again, I

          6  appreciate your time. And to understand that whether

          7  we deal with laws that already exist on the books,

          8  Title 12, Code Section 26, or whether we deal with

          9  new proposed legislation, like Intro. 393, I think

         10  it's important that obviously there is a way to find

         11  out who is making these phone calls, when we talk

         12  about not so much even the 9-1-1 situation but a

         13  3-1-1 situation where our City resources are being

         14  used in the form of harassment, and I look forward

         15  to continuing our conversation, again dealing from

         16  that common ground.

         17                 Thank you very much, Mr. Chair.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you,

         19  Council Member. Let me continue to try to find that

         20  common ground for a moment.

         21                 You said that 3-1-1, sometimes you

         22  subpoena the records in order to do a prosecution.

         23  First of all, let me ask you, have there been any

         24  prosecutions under the law you cited for filing

         25  false complaints?
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          2                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER KNAFO: I

          3  don't know if any of the prosecutions have resulted

          4  in people going to jail.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Or have there

          6  been prosecutions to begin with?

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER KNAFO: The

          8  Police Department have taken records for threats

          9  against public officials, and people have been

         10  arrested.

         11                 What happened beyond that, I don't

         12  know.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: What about false

         14  complaints against nightclubs or building owners or

         15  anything like that? Have there been any

         16  prosecutions?

         17                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER KNAFO: I'm

         18  not aware of any.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: So obviously we

         20  should look to improve the law so we can at least

         21  start to deal with that problem.

         22                 One of the ways we may be able to do

         23  that is by making 3-1-1 similar to 9-1-1. 9-1-1 will

         24  automatically trace the call and provide a record of

         25  where that call came from.
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          2                 Apparently 3-1-1 does not do that, if

          3  you have to go subpoena the records; is that

          4  correct?

          5                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER KNAFO: We

          6  get some of the information. The Police Department

          7  gets what's called ante alley (phonetic), they get

          8  the automatic number and the automatic location

          9  information.

         10                 We get, however we block it from our

         11  call-taker so they cannot see it, the automatic

         12  number informations. So, it's in the system, but

         13  they can't see it. That's the number that we use

         14  when we turn calls over to the Police Department.

         15                 So, the Police Department needs to do

         16  an investigation, they can access that number and

         17  they can go to the phone company and get further

         18  information about that number.

         19                 They don't see automatically the

         20  location information.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: So, what

         22  information do you subpoena?

         23                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER KNAFO:

         24  Well, from the phone number, which we have locked so

         25  that none of our call-takers can see -- let me go
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          2  back for a second. There are blocked caller IDs and

          3  there are unblocked caller IDs. We see unblocked

          4  caller IDs. So, when you call from a regular phone,

          5  we see your phone number and it's part of the call

          6  record.

          7                 If you have an unblocked caller ID,

          8  because of the number of calls that we transfer to

          9  9-1-1, it was important that we were able to move

         10  that information with the call to 9-1-1. So, if you

         11  call 3-1-1 from a phone that has a blocked caller

         12  ID, and it turns out you're calling for something

         13  that actually is an emergency, we will do a transfer

         14  of you, and the 3-1-1 operator into 9-1-1. So we'll

         15  have a three-way conference call. The 3-1-1 operator

         16  caller and the 9-1-1 caller.

         17                 Because the Police Department needs

         18  to be able to get their ante alley (phonetic)

         19  information, we have to pass them the phone number.

         20  So, we get that phone number. Our people don't see

         21  it at all, but it's able to be passed to the Police

         22  Department.

         23                 So, in the case like a threat, the

         24  Police Department can come and they can take that

         25  record of that unblocked ID, and then they can go to
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          2  the phone company and get where the phone number

          3  originated.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I was not aware

          5  of that. That's comforting actually.

          6                 So there is no way right now that

          7  someone can use 3-1-1 to dispatch the emergency

          8  vehicle without 9-1-1 being involved?

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER KNAFO:

         10  Yeah, that was one of the things in the Newsday

         11  today, there was a reference to people calling 3-1-1

         12  to dispatch emergency vehicles to noisy locations.

         13                 We don't dispatch any emergency

         14  vehicles. We have 12 categories of quality of life

         15  crimes that go to the Police Department. I shouldn't

         16  say we don't dispatch emergency vehicles. We don't

         17  dispatch emergency vehicles in an emergency manner.

         18                 Our quality of life crimes go to the

         19  police precinct, and the Police Department has a

         20  time frame in which they handle less calls.

         21                 So they're separate from the 9-1-1

         22  system. There's a computer in each precinct around

         23  the City where they get our calls.

         24                 So, eventually those calls are

         25  dispatched by police cars. But if it's an emergency,
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          2  it's a conference call to 9-1-1, and the dispatch is

          3  part of the 9-1-1 system, so if somebody calls us

          4  and reports a false incident, they say there's a man

          5  with a gun, they say there's a robbery, and really

          6  what they want to do is get the police to a place

          7  where people are smoking in front of a bar, we're

          8  transferring that call to 9-1-1 because we're not

          9  making any judgment. And there's where I don't wan

         10  3-1-1 to take caller information, because that would

         11  just slow down the transfer to 9-1-1. It could be

         12  real.

         13                 9-1-1 will then dispatch the local

         14  precinct car. When the precinct gets there, if they

         15  determine that this is not a man with a gun or a

         16  robbery, it was somebody calling a false report,

         17  it's in their purview to do an investigation to try

         18  and find out what happened. And that I would defer

         19  to the Police Department.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: But apparently

         21  there have been no prosecutions, so does the Police

         22  Department concur that there have been no

         23  prosecutions for people calling in an emergency that

         24  turns out to be -- or a non-emergency, such as a

         25  nightclub situation, that turns out to be false.

                                                            49

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2                 CAPTAIN PEIFER: We'd have to check

          3  our records for that. I'm not personally aware of

          4  any.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Well, speaking

          6  of the nightclub, we will be hearing from the

          7  Nightclub Association next, and they obviously have

          8  a complaint about people calling in false complaints

          9  against nightclubs, whether it be competitors or

         10  just people in the neighborhood who are upset.

         11                 Do you keep records of these type

         12  calls? Either one of you?

         13                 CAPTAIN PEIFER: Of which type calls?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Calls regarding

         15  non-emergency situations, smoking, noise, those type

         16  things?

         17                 CAPTAIN PEIFER: Any time a police

         18  officer is dispatched to a location, we have a

         19  record of that.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: So, if a police

         21  officer has been dispatched to a location ten times

         22  and found no violation, first of all, you do have a

         23  record of that, I assume.

         24                 And second of all, what's done in

         25  that situation?
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          2                 CAPTAIN PEIFER: On a case-by-case

          3  basis we investigate all of the complaints.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Well, that's

          5  true, and, unfortunately, that's part of the

          6  problem, that you are bound, both of you, to

          7  investigate every complaint that comes in, and I

          8  guess that's a good thing. But if you have ten

          9  complaints which have been unfounded, at what point

         10  do you start either an investigation or start taking

         11  some action to prevent harassment?

         12                 MS. PETITO: Susan Petito, from the

         13  Police Department.

         14                 I think it's a little more

         15  complicated question than just finding that there's

         16  been a string of unfounded complaints. Often by the

         17  time we get there, the Commission has corrected

         18  itself, because somebody might be aware that the

         19  police were called. So the mere fact that something

         20  is an unfounded complaint, doesn't lead us to the

         21  automatic conclusion that there is abuse of the

         22  system.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: That's why I

         24  said ten, because I was aware that could happen one

         25  or two times, but ten times would probably raise an

                                                            51

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  alarm.

          3                 MS. PETITO: Well, as Captain Peifer

          4  said, it would be a case-by-case issue, and if the

          5  bar owner, or an interested person made a complaint

          6  that they were being harassed in some way, we would

          7  take that as a criminal complaint. I think that's

          8  what he was referring to, that's what would have to

          9  be investigated on a case-by-case basis.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay, I'll come

         11  back with some questions, but first let me

         12  recognize, we've been joined by Council members

         13  Hiram Monserrate, Mr. Gentile and Phil Reed. Thank

         14  you all.

         15                 And going now to Council Member Katz

         16  for some follow-up questions.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Thank you, Mr.

         18  Chair.

         19                 I'm just a little unclear. There's a

         20  lot of we do this this time and that that time type

         21  of conversation. So, I just want to truly

         22  understand.

         23                 Someone calls 3-1-1 from an unblocked

         24  number. That becomes part of your records, correct?

         25                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER KNAFO:
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          2  Unblocked number becomes part of our records, yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: It becomes part

          4  of your record. So, you know, if you had to look it

          5  up, that at 2:00, at 10:00 on July 16th, someone

          6  called.

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER KNAFO: Yes.

          8  We could even look it up by a phone number.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: And this was

         10  their complaint.

         11                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER KNAFO: Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay. Then you

         13  can look up by cell number, by phone number and say,

         14  okay, there's an accusation that someone is calling

         15  to harass someone. So, you can look it up by 347 27

         16  ba ba ba ba ba ba, and find out how many times that

         17  person called?

         18                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER KNAFO: Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Yes.

         20                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER KNAFO: Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: And I guess you

         22  could also find out how many complaints there was

         23  against one organization?

         24                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER KNAFO:

         25  Against a location.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Right, you can

          3  look it up, because even know you have an ID number

          4  that we all know and love, there is an address. So

          5  you can look it up by address. Because if I call and

          6  complain about something and the Chairman calls and

          7  complains about something, there's different ID

          8  numbers.

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER KNAFO: And

         10  I'll see all of those listed when I search by

         11  address.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay. Now, I

         13  call from a private number.

         14                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER KNAFO:

         15  Um-hmm.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: It's a blocked

         17  number. So that just basically gets lost, right?

         18  Because you don't ask for the name and address of

         19  the people, so what happened on the block?

         20                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER KNAFO: The

         21  people, the information about the phone number, is

         22  not lost, it's hidden. But we can still do the

         23  searches by the address. I can still see all of

         24  those calls. I just can't see the phone number.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Well, but you
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          2  don't see who's making the complaint, and that's

          3  really the point of today, isn't it?

          4                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER KNAFO:

          5  That's right.

          6                 So, we don't lose any information

          7  about the call. What you're not seeing, and we

          8  certainly can look at it, and this is something we

          9  could discuss, is all of the different calls. When

         10  somebody blocks your phone number, they don't want

         11  you to see their phone number, and we're respecting

         12  that privacy.

         13                 If we have reason to believe that

         14  they've done something wrong, then there is reason

         15  to discuss why we would go look at that.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Well, you can't

         17  really look at it after the fact, right?

         18                 I mean, the fact of the matter is, if

         19  someone calls ten times and complains about a

         20  neighbor, and it's a block number each time --

         21                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER KNAFO: It's

         22  still saved in the system.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: You still can

         24  get the number in the system?

         25                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER KNAFO: Yes.

                                                            55

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So, now, what

          3  makes you track?

          4                 I understand now that now you have a

          5  record of everything, you have a record of all of

          6  the phone numbers, what makes you track a phone

          7  number? When would that ever happen?

          8                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER KNAFO: We

          9  don't ever as a course of business track by phone

         10  number. We only use it to help us look for things.

         11                 If somebody calls up and complains

         12  about a 3-1-1 operator not doing the right thing,

         13  we'll ask them what phone number they called from

         14  because it's easier for us to find the call.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: The Council

         16  Member calls and says, I have a neighbor complaining

         17  about another neighbor. He says that the Fire

         18  Department, the Police Department, the Buildings

         19  Department has come to his house ten times.

         20                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER KNAFO:

         21  Um-hmm.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: We think they're

         23  doing it through 3-1-1. You mean to tell me that's

         24  never happened? Nobody has ever called and asked you

         25  to track?
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          2                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER KNAFO: No,

          3  they have.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay. So what

          5  happens then.

          6                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER KNAFO: We

          7  will typically look up the call by address. And when

          8  we look up the call by address, we'll see all of the

          9  information that's in there. And we may see

         10  anonymous, we may see full caller information that's

         11  given.

         12                 And we will typically work with the

         13  agency to help them investigate what happened. So,

         14  whether it's Buildings Department or the Police

         15  Department, we'll sit down and go through all the

         16  information that we have to find that out. And if

         17  that means getting to a blocked caller ID, we can do

         18  that.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: And, so, you can

         20  do that post the call?

         21                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER KNAFO: Yes.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So, I guess then

         23  I'm really just unclear, because then I don't

         24  understand what the big deal is.

         25                 I mean, honestly, I just don't.
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          2                 You guys have the information. I

          3  would wish you would be able to tell me how many

          4  times someone has called up and asked, you know,

          5  there's been an accusation of false claims against,

          6  you know, certain folks. I don't know if you have

          7  that with you, like how many times you've been asked

          8  to backtrack and look at that and if the system

          9  actually works?

         10                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER KNAFO: I

         11  don't have that with me. I mean, it's been a handful

         12  of times and I can certainly get that information.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I guess my only

         14  point is I don't see what the big deal is. If you're

         15  getting the information anyway, I think that if you

         16  ask people, right now there is press here today, I

         17  am assuming after today the general public that is

         18  concerned about this will know that every time they

         19  call 3-1-1, the phone call will be able to be

         20  tracked back to them.

         21                 So, the question I have really

         22  becomes, I don't understand what the big deal is.

         23                 I mean, you can't get into a

         24  government building without showing your ID. You

         25  can't go into a hospital without showing your ID.
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          2  You can't hardly I mean do anything.

          3                 I called up a real estate broker the

          4  other day and they asked me for my name and my phone

          5  number before they even talked to me.

          6                 So, I guess my question really

          7  becomes, why is it such a big deal?

          8                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER KNAFO:

          9  Because it takes a lot more time to give that

         10  information to an operator. To give the name and

         11  address and phone number. Because a lot of the time

         12  people won't give their accurate address and phone

         13  number. And, so, for the 99 percent of calls that go

         14  in without a problem, that aren't about false

         15  claims, we'd rather make it easier for the callers.

         16  And for that one percent that there may be an issue,

         17  we'd rather do a little extra work on our end to get

         18  that information that we already have.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: But I don't

         20  believe, I don't know if either piece of legislation

         21  calls for this or whatever it is, but I think the

         22  majority of the issues is when we send people to

         23  people's homes.

         24                 I think that's really the majority of

         25  the issues. I don't think that we're saying
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          2  potholes, street lights, things like that. We're

          3  really saying that if you are calling about sending

          4  an inspector to people's homes or businesses, then

          5  you should get their name.

          6                 Now, my name is Melinda Katz.

          7  718-544-8800. I would say that's about 15 to 20

          8  seconds. And I guess what I'd like to see from the

          9  agency, honestly, and I hear what you're doing here

         10  today and I respect your testimony, and we respect

         11  the time, but I'd like to know after today, really

         12  after you guys think about it and talk about it,

         13  what the big deal is about asking people their name

         14  and number. I just don't see it. And I'm glad to

         15  know now that I can call the agency and say, you

         16  know, one of my neighbors is accusing the other of

         17  this, can you look it up for me? I didn't know that

         18  before today.

         19                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER KNAFO: I

         20  mean, we can certainly pull some statistics together

         21  to show the difference in the time that it takes to

         22  enter a call with a name and address that we have to

         23  validate and verify. And it really is a significant

         24  difference.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I don't think
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          2  anybody is asking you to validate and verify. I

          3  think what we're saying is that if you just ask the

          4  name and phone number, you're going to get rid of a

          5  certain amount of false claims, whether it's one,

          6  ten, 20, 50. I don't think anybody is saying to you,

          7  you have to verify it at that moment.

          8                 I think we're just saying -- look,

          9  someone calls up my district office and says, I want

         10  to complain about a neighbor, the first thing my

         11  office says is, what is your name and phone number?

         12  What's your address? First thing they say.

         13                 So, I don't know if you have the

         14  answer now, but, again, I guess I'm just not really

         15  that convinced from the testimony that it's such a

         16  big deal, especially when the information is

         17  available, and I assume the press or the media,

         18  whoever it is, is going to, you know, print it. Any

         19  call you make in 3-1-1 is identifiable anyway.

         20                 So, I thank you for your time.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I think, just to

         22  comment on one of your concerns, we absolutely don't

         23  want to prevent people from say calling complaints

         24  against an alleged drug dealer in their apartment

         25  building, because they are afraid they may need to
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          2  give up their name. But absolutely, we do need to

          3  take some actions to combat the abuse of 3-1-1 that

          4  we have heard and will hear is going on.

          5                 Are there any other questions from

          6  Council members? Okay. One moment. I'm just trying

          7  to find out if Margarita Lopez is anywhere near.

          8  We've been joined by Council Member Helen Foster.

          9  Thank you for coming down. We can break out the sock

         10  puppets until she gets here, but it doesn't look

         11  like it's going to happen. So, I'm sure she may have

         12  some questions that she'll be calling you with, or

         13  some responses to what you said, knowing Margarita.

         14  Just a hunch. But for now, I just want to thank you

         15  all for coming down here. And I'm sure that on some

         16  of these matters, we will be able to work together

         17  and come up with something that you support and

         18  that's in the best interest of this City. So, thank

         19  you. And we'll look forward to working with all of

         20  you in the future.

         21                 There are two more people who will

         22  testify, one on each issue. We'll start with Robert

         23  Bookman from the Nightlife Association on the 3-1-1

         24  issue.

         25                 Welcome, Mr. Bookman. We look forward
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          2  to your testimony.

          3                 MR. BOOKMAN: Thank you. It was very

          4  interesting testimony from the Administration today.

          5  I hope to be given a moment to comment on it after

          6  my full testimony.

          7                 My name is Robert Bookman. I am

          8  Counsel to the New York Nightlife Association, the

          9  organization that represents New York City's bars,

         10  lounges and nightclubs.

         11                 On behalf of the hundreds of members

         12  of NYNA, I thank you for the opportunity to appear

         13  and testify today in support of Intros 509 and 393.

         14  At the outset, let me say that the Nightlife

         15  industry is not opposed to the 3-1-1 system. There's

         16  a great way to report a pothole or to find out where

         17  to go in City government to get something done.

         18                 Unfortunately, however, it is being

         19  abused. 3-1-1 has also become a great way to file a

         20  false complaint about a nearby business or neighbor

         21  that you are having a problem with.

         22                 These false complaints have direct

         23  and negative consequences to the business climate in

         24  this City.

         25                 Police officers entering a bar or
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          2  club in response to a 3-1-1 call at 2:00 in the

          3  morning, as you can imagine, has a chilling effect

          4  on the customers. It can easily result in the

          5  ruining of your night. And the anecdotal evidence is

          6  growing that many of these calls are for harassment

          7  purposes, not to report legitimate quality of life

          8  violations.

          9                 These individuals know that since

         10  3-1-1 is anonymous, there are no consequences to

         11  making a false complaint. This has to stop; these

         12  intros are a great start.

         13                 The problem, however, goes well

         14  beyond false 3-1-1 calls necessitating police or

         15  fire responses. Frequently other enforcement

         16  agencies, such as Health, DEP, Buildings and

         17  Consumer Affairs are required to dispatch inspectors

         18  in response to anonymous 3-1-1 calls.

         19                 These agencies have limited staff,

         20  which are wasted by false 3-1-1 complaints. They

         21  also have no rules or regulations about how

         22  frequently they will return to a business based on

         23  3-1-1 calls, even when no violations are discovered.

         24                 Moreover, by requiring 3-1-1 callers

         25  with complaints to give their name and address,
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          2  3-1-1 can learn for the first time and keep track

          3  for the first time how frequently a single person is

          4  calling about the same place.

          5                 One-hundred calls by the same person

          6  is not the same thing as 100 complaints about an

          7  establishment.

          8                 Citizens, frankly, have nothing to

          9  fear from confidentially providing their name while

         10  filing a complaint. Unless, of course, the complaint

         11  is false, which is the whole point of these

         12  excellent intros.

         13                 I'd like to also take a moment to

         14  discuss the relationship of the 3-1-1 system and the

         15  new ban on smoking inside bars and clubs.

         16                 Our organization warned this body

         17  that a negative consequence of the smoking ban would

         18  be an increase in the number of residents disturbed

         19  by street noise resulting from people congregating

         20  outside at late hours smoking.

         21                 That is exactly what has happened.

         22  But because of the 3-1-1 system, bars and clubs are

         23  actually now harassed with police visits and City

         24  inspectors because we are enforcing the smoking ban.

         25                 The 3-1-1 calls aren't about smoking
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          2  complaints, they're about street noise, or alleged

          3  disturbances going on or disorderly premises,

          4  whatever will get a City official to come. And often

          5  we are told, the officer will say, off the record,

          6  we have to write you up for something. That's the

          7  problem and the dichotomy between the testimony I

          8  heard and the real world.

          9                 In the real world, the Police

         10  Department and 3-1-1 are not issuing subpoenas and

         11  going through court cases just to find out who

         12  called in a complaint about a neighbor or a

         13  business. They're just not doing that.

         14                 The answer to your question, you

         15  know, how many people have been prosecuted, they

         16  didn't know. Well, we're all willing to take a

         17  friendly wager what the answer to that is. The

         18  answer, unless it's a serious thing, such as a

         19  threat against a public official, the answer is

         20  never. Or because they don't think it as a terrible

         21  problem that inspectors were, you know, dispatched

         22  to a building, whether it be a residence or a

         23  business or police had to come and maybe they issued

         24  some violations concerning what the nature of the

         25  call was, and maybe they didn't. They don't consider

                                                            66

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  that a problem, they consider it part of their

          3  fundraising effort to meet their quota of

          4  violations.

          5                 You know, and the support, it seems

          6  to me, for anonymous complaints ends when the call

          7  is about you, and when your privacy is being

          8  violated by an inspector showing up at your home or

          9  your place of business asking you a series of

         10  complaints when it's based on a false complaint.

         11                 Then I think, you know, I noticed

         12  Councilwoman Katz gave her name and phone number, I

         13  didn't see anybody from the Administration giving

         14  their names -- well, they gave their name, but not

         15  their phone numbers, where people could file false

         16  complaints about them.

         17                 While the police have a record every

         18  time the PD is dispatched, it seems clear to me that

         19  they are not taking seriously false 3-1-1

         20  complaints, and the numbers, and, quickly, the

         21  response to the five points that the Administration

         22  gave as to why these bills wouldn't work, their

         23  first point was as I was taking notes, that 70

         24  percent of their calls were strictly informational,

         25  so why do they need to take all this information.
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          2                 Well, I don't think anybody is saying

          3  that they need to take that information on the 70

          4  percent of their calls that are strictly

          5  informational.

          6                 We're talking about the 30 percent of

          7  the calls that are not strictly informational. And

          8  30 percent of the calls where the caller is trying

          9  to get a government official to go to a particular

         10  place. That's the 30 percent of the calls we have to

         11  focus on. And I was glad to hear that whichever

         12  portion of that 30 percent are emergency, well, they

         13  get 9-1-1 involved anyway, so we're not even talking

         14  about that percentage. Now we're down maybe to 20

         15  percent.

         16                 All right, according to the

         17  information that was handed out in some of the

         18  background of these bills, 50 to 60 percent of the

         19  3-1-1 calls that do involve police or fire are

         20  quality of life type of problems, not emergency

         21  problems.

         22                 So, we're talking about a finite

         23  amount. Maybe ten percent of their calls. But ten

         24  percent of 12 million calls is still over a million

         25  calls, and if ten percent of those million calls are
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          2  false, we're talking about 100,000 fake calls.

          3  That's a serious problem that is certainly, however,

          4  manageable within the overall context of number of

          5  complaints that we're talking about.

          6                 And last, I just want to read into

          7  the record, because it was shocking to me as I was

          8  sitting here reading the background material

          9  provided on Councilman Addabbo's excellent bill, but

         10  I'm quoting where it says, referring to the

         11  Buildings Department, "The majority of complaints

         12  were found to be false." The majority of complaints.

         13  "According to a Department of Buildings'

         14  spokesperson, the Administrative Code charges the

         15  Department of Buildings with investigating all

         16  complaints that come in, even if they duplicate

         17  earlier complaints, adding that because the

         18  complaints are often anonymous, there is no way to

         19  know whether the source is legitimate.

         20                 Well, it seems to me that any person

         21  of good faith and of reason would want to take this

         22  excellent system that is being abused in a small

         23  minority of cases and correct it. And that's all

         24  we're asking for.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: We've been
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          2  joined by Council Member Erik Dilan. Thank you.

          3                 Mr. Bookman, you are the Counsel to

          4  the Nightlife Association, so I guess you know

          5  better than anyone else, how often do you believe,

          6  based on anecdotal evidence, since you won't have

          7  hard evidence, that these complaints are directed

          8  against your members? And do you believe they come

          9  mostly from civilians or from competitors?

         10                 MR. BOOKMAN: Both, frankly.

         11                 I'd be less than honest if I didn't

         12  say that it wasn't coming from some competitors as

         13  well. I mean, sometimes what you'll have is a bar or

         14  a club that is enforcing the smoking ban, and,

         15  therefore, has been hurt somewhat in business and

         16  having antagonism with their neighbors because there

         17  are people out 2:00, 3:00 in the morning, you know,

         18  smoking, and the bar around the corner, perhaps is

         19  not enforcing the smoking ban as vigorously. So

         20  they're not getting --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: That's not a

         22  false complaint.

         23                 MR. BOOKMAN: I understand.

         24                 The person then calling, the

         25  competitor then calling 3-1-1 is not calling about
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          2  lack of enforcement of the smoking ban, because

          3  that's not going to generate generally a quick

          4  inspection. They're going to call and say there's a

          5  disturbance outside. There are people being loud,

          6  there's a disorderly premise. And those are the

          7  types of complaints that the well-educated residents

          8  who are concerned about this increased street noise

          9  are calling about.

         10                 So, do we know how often it happens?

         11  No. Because we don't know why the agent has been

         12  dispatched. You know, sometimes if you're friendly

         13  with the Police Precinct and they're embarrassed

         14  about how many times they've come in a month, a

         15  sergeant may pull you aside and put his arm around

         16  you and say, listen, these are 3-1-1 calls, but we

         17  have to respond. So, sometimes we know this is a

         18  result of 3-1-1, and sometimes, you know, we don't

         19  know. But it is increasing and through anecdotal

         20  evidence, that's for sure.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Well, has there

         22  been a situation where you, as representing the

         23  industry, or one of your clients has suspected that

         24  either a competitor or a civilian has been filing

         25  false complaints, for whatever reason, and has gone
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          2  to the police to attempt to have it investigated?

          3                 MR. BOOKMAN: No, because we don't

          4  know who the person is who is calling those 3-1-1.

          5  And before today, I didn't think anybody in the

          6  public knew that they had any way of tracking these

          7  anonymous complaints.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: We just found

          9  out.

         10                 MR. BOOKMAN: We just all found that

         11  out today. I am certainly going to put an alert out

         12  to our members that if you feel that you're the

         13  victim of false 3-1-1 complaints, I would like some

         14  more information from the Police Department, who it

         15  is we're supposed to complain to. Do we go to the

         16  local precinct? Do we go to 3-1-1? I mean, they were

         17  more than a bit vague, quite frankly, as to how

         18  citizens are supposed to deal with this problem, and

         19  I think this Committee could get that information

         20  and disseminate it, it would be a huge service.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I think it would

         22  be very helpful to Councilman Addabbo in his quest

         23  to reform the system that you'd do exactly that,

         24  that you would attempt to have the present law

         25  enforced, and see if they have the ability that they
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          2  said they did to actually track down somebody and

          3  then see if they'll actually prosecute. So that

          4  would be very helpful.

          5                 So, make sure you'll keep Council

          6  Member Addabbo and this Committee involved and let

          7  us know what happened.

          8                 MR. BOOKMAN: It's nice to know that

          9  they claim they have the way. The real issue is, do

         10  they have the will. You know, short of legislation

         11  such as this.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: We would like to

         13  know that also.

         14                 Council Member Addabbo.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Thanks, Mr.

         16  Chair.

         17                 Again, I thank your line of

         18  questioning. And Mr. Bookman, thank you for your

         19  time and testimony.

         20                 Just a quick question, is there

         21  anybody from the Administration in the audience? No.

         22  That's unfortunate. Because I think for this abuse

         23  of the 3-1-1 system to work, I think we're going to

         24  need cooperation, not only from business owners and

         25  residents in the City Council Committee here, but
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          2  also from the Administration.

          3                 So, I would have wished that they

          4  were still here.

          5                 Mr. Bookman, a question. How many

          6  businesses in your association do you represent?

          7                 MR. BOOKMAN: About 250.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: About 250.

          9  And of these 250, or in your opinion, have you seen

         10  a rise into what you may claim is harassment due to

         11  the 3-1-1 system?

         12                 MR. BOOKMAN: Absolutely.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Over the last

         14  how many years?

         15                 MR. BOOKMAN: Well, over the last two

         16  to three years, there has been a rise in the number

         17  of violations in general issued against small

         18  businesses. You've probably seen it in your recent

         19  budget hearings, when each of the agencies proudly

         20  comes in and tells you how many more millions of

         21  dollars they intend to collect next year from fines

         22  than they did in the previous year. Well, those

         23  fines are summonses issued generally to small

         24  businesses. I mean, there's only so many fines,

         25  summonses they're going to issue to people sitting
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          2  on the milk box in an election year. So, where do

          3  they get this money? They get it from us, you know.

          4  And, you know, we can all agree or not, this is my

          5  moment of being on a soap box, we can all agree that

          6  raising taxes on businesses is a bad idea, but every

          7  time you pass a budget when sanitation proudly or

          8  another agency proudly says next year we're going to

          9  have $2 million more in fines than this year, you're

         10  raising taxes on small businesses, because we're the

         11  ones who are paying for it.

         12                 So, we've definitely seen an increase

         13  in summonses and fines in the last two years from

         14  this Administration. How to separate that from 3-1-1

         15  is frankly difficult. There we go into anecdotal

         16  stories where my members and clients will tell me

         17  that they have been told by the inspector, whatever,

         18  this was a 3-1-1 response.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Do you think

         20  that, you know, again, if we were to address, like I

         21  think we should, the abuses of the 3-1-1 system in

         22  terms of harassment in regards to using City

         23  agencies as a form of harassment, do you think if we

         24  addressed the fact that the callers now know that

         25  through 3-1-1 they can be investigated? Do you think
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          2  that that addresses the situation that maybe, that

          3  we may see a decline of harassment through the 3-1-1

          4  system?

          5                 MR. BOOKMAN: Absolutely.

          6                 I think it would have a huge

          7  prophylactic effect of reducing the number of people

          8  who feel that at-will they can make false

          9  complaints. If they know in fact that their name and

         10  phone number is being tracked.

         11                 And by the way, since we know that

         12  they have Caller ID, whether it's blocked or not, we

         13  don't need to -- it seems to me that that resolves

         14  the problem of the third point of unreliable name

         15  and address. They know the phone number, and if the

         16  caller knows that they know their phone number,

         17  which we don't know now, I think the degree of

         18  reliability of name and address will go way up. And

         19  I think it will also resolve the impact of that one

         20  person calling 100 times and being treated as 100

         21  complaints and letters going out to elected

         22  officials' offices saying we received 100 complaints

         23  about this particular location. So, I think the

         24  individual would be less likely, you know, to call

         25  100 times if they know that they're being tracked.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Mr. Bookman,

          3  thank you very much. I do look forward to working

          4  with you during in this committee and members and

          5  also the Administration to again address the abuses

          6  of the 3-1-1 system and the harassment that is,

          7  again, drawn upon our innocent victims out there in

          8  the community. So, thank you very much.

          9                 MR. BOOKMAN: Thank you.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Thank you,

         11  Mr. Chair.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you,

         13  Council Member.

         14                 And if nothing else, when Brian

         15  Verisano (phonetic) from Newsday reports tomorrow

         16  that there is the ability for 3-1-1 to trace a call

         17  if they believe there's a false report going on,

         18  that will accomplish a great deal as you said, so

         19  it's something we've accomplished here today.

         20                 Council Member Reed.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you, Mr.

         22  Chair. This is an interesting subject. Mr. Bookman,

         23  It's always interesting to hear you.

         24                 So, you think the milk crates are

         25  safe this year, this season anyway?
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          2                 MR. BOOKMAN: I think the milk crates

          3  and pregnant women sitting on the steps of the

          4  subway is safe this year.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: All right.

          6                 Really the thought that I have, Mr.

          7  Chair, on this is I think most of the skeptics about

          8  9-1-1 were proven wrong in the sense that I think it

          9  probably has been helpful in terms of tracking where

         10  problems are. Also, as you said, Mr. Bookman, every

         11  agency has come and said that there's been an

         12  increase in complaints, et cetera, et cetera, why

         13  can't I think of the name of it, the Civilian

         14  Complaint Review Board is up like twice as many. The

         15  interesting thing, of course, with the CCRB is not

         16  only are there twice as many, but there is twice as

         17  many corroborated as substitutes. So, I wonder what

         18  that's all about.

         19                 Having said that, Mr. Chair, I think

         20  it would be interesting to, at some point when we're

         21  discussing 3-1-1, to find out if there's a way to

         22  identify habitual users or abusers of the system,

         23  not just as it relates to the particular issues with

         24  the night club, but I'm sure there are people who on

         25  a consistent basis use 3-1-1, and I'm interested if
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          2  the operators themselves, if there's some code or

          3  light of flashing or asterisk that goes up, says,

          4  you know, pardon me, Mr. Gentile calls in here every

          5  day. Because I imagine that people have nothing

          6  better to do than to sit there and, of course, we

          7  know the Councilman has other things to do,

          8  occasionally. But I think that we would find that

          9  there is probably a percentage of this across the

         10  board in all agencies, and it might be useful in

         11  terms of this technology to see if there's a way to

         12  identify people, and in fact at some point perhaps

         13  even prosecute them for the amount of time that's

         14  being taken and resources to process, because every

         15  one of those calls cost us money.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you,

         18  Council Member Reed.

         19                 I believe Council Member Addabbo and

         20  Mr. Bookman had a question about whether the

         21  Administration is here.

         22                 They are actually here, I think

         23  they're under orders not to identify themselves,

         24  whenever we ask that question. Probably the smart

         25  thing to do, based on past experience, but they are
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          2  in the room listening.

          3                 MR. BOOKMAN: They're here

          4  anonymously, in other words.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Mr. Chair, that

          6  is really frightening. If they can't acknowledge

          7  themselves but they're here listening, that is

          8  really -- what did they bug the room now?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: They may have

         10  some legitimate public safety reasons.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: I see, okay.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Council Member

         13  Lopez, thank you for joining us. At least one of

         14  these measures are your bill, and I can't repeat

         15  everything that was said before you got here, but

         16  would you like to make a statement?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I just want to

         18  thank you for putting this bill forward and for

         19  listening to it, particularly with the problems that

         20  the 3-1-1 have created in my community in a way has

         21  been a blessing for all of us in order to get

         22  information in regard of all of the problems that

         23  happen in the City. But now 3-1-1 have become a

         24  weapon, a weapon to attack small businesses in my

         25  area, and a weapon that is utilized to deploy
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          2  critical life-saving units that should not be

          3  utilized for people utilizing 3-1-1 as a weapon when

          4  they don't like a particular restaurant, or a

          5  particular nightlife institution, or a particular

          6  cultural institution that people congregate on the

          7  sidewalk and then 3-1-1 is utilized to deploy the

          8  Police Department, the Fire Department or ambulance

          9  systems. Then all of these things need to stop, and

         10  somehow we need to make people accountable when they

         11  use the 3-1-1 that it's really for what it's needed

         12  and not to put in jeopardy the life and the security

         13  of the people in the City and the City in totality.

         14                 And somehow I feel that this bill

         15  that have been put forward by me may be able to put

         16  in place the control for this issue.

         17                 The Police Department in my area, the

         18  precincts, were the one who made me aware of this

         19  problem, they were the one who called me in regard

         20  to this issue, and then the Community Board 3 who

         21  begin receiving complaints that were flying off the

         22  handles, and every single complaint, when they begin

         23  to be investigating were false, false accusations

         24  and false complaints.

         25                 Then I want to thank the Chair for
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          2  putting this forward and thanking for allowing this

          3  bill to be listened to. Thank you.

          4                 MR. BOOKMAN: Mr. Chair, I have one

          5  comment, I want to give a real life story, and a

          6  conversation I had with an Assistant Commissioner

          7  for Enforcement in the Health Department in some

          8  meeting we had about, you know, general enforcement

          9  issues with the industry after the smoking ban.

         10                 The 3-1-1 system particularly came

         11  up, and in many conversations I've had, I don't want

         12  to identify the officials, but in many conversations

         13  I've had with government officials who were in

         14  charge of enforcement, they're the first ones to

         15  tell you off the record that the pressure from the

         16  top down is to be responsive to these 3-1-1

         17  referrals and no choice but to go out and they have

         18  no rules or regulations about not going out multiple

         19  times, even though their inspectors don't find what

         20  it is that they were told to go out for, you know,

         21  and they're kind of their hands are tied.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: The response to

         23  complaints is a good thing usually. Unfortunately,

         24  as you just said, that it can be abused, and we hope

         25  that they set some internal guidelines here on
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          2  showing up at one location, multiple locations.

          3                 Let me thank Council Members Addabbo

          4  and Margarita Lopez for bringing this to my

          5  attention, and for constantly harassing me publicly

          6  to have this hearing. But, again, because of your

          7  reference, we've shed some light on this issue, and

          8  learned today, Margarita, before you showed up, that

          9  there is a way to trace most of these calls, and

         10  that, alone that knowledge being out there will

         11  hopefully result in less false complaints to 3-1-1,

         12  and hopefully now to work out a way with the

         13  Administration to craft a bill which will curb some

         14  of these abuses.

         15                 Mr. Bookman, thank you for coming

         16  down today.

         17                 MR. BOOKMAN: Thank you very much.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: We have one more

         19  witness that is not on the 3-1-1 portion, it's on

         20  the construction bill portion, so the 3-1-1 portion

         21  is going to be over.

         22                 The next and last witness will be

         23  Jeff Elmer from the General Contractors Association.

         24                 Thank you, Mr. Elmer. Thank you for

         25  coming down today. The floor is yours.
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          2                 MR. ELMER: Is the microphone on?

          3  Okay. I don't have any written testimony for you.

          4  I'm Jeff Elmer with the General Contractors

          5  Association representing the heavy construction

          6  industry that's active in New York City.

          7                 I would have had the testimony, we

          8  had a little mix-up this morning, and I was told at

          9  the last minute that I was to come down and give

         10  testimony. We have a couple of experts on drug-free

         11  workplaces and the like at our office but they

         12  weren't able to be here so I'll do the best I can.

         13                 The General Contractors Association

         14  is here in support of the concept behind Intro. 598,

         15  the bill that makes it a crime to be intoxicated on

         16  a construction site.

         17                 It's clear from the OSHA studies and

         18  other surveys that drug and alcohol abuse are real

         19  problems on too many building sites.

         20                 The substance abuse issue is all the

         21  more dangerous because of the nature of the

         22  construction work which is by definition hazardous.

         23  Heavy construction operators, when impaired by drugs

         24  or alcohol can kill or injure many other workers or

         25  pedestrians. It's critical that the Council pass
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          2  this measure or similar legislation so that workers

          3  know with absolute clarity construction sites must

          4  remain drug and alcohol-free environments.

          5                 The Council should also note that

          6  this kind of drug abuse has financial consequences

          7  for both contractors and City agencies. Contractors

          8  worker compensation rates are pegged in part to his

          9  maintaining a safe workplace.

         10                 Contractors who employ workers who

         11  are impaired by drugs also risk losing their

         12  insurance and also risk losing their ability to work

         13  for the City.

         14                 This drives up cost for the City and

         15  taxpayers. Legislation like this is important. It

         16  gives contractors the ability to help curtail

         17  self-destructive and costly behaviors by their

         18  employees of their contract, of their subcontractors

         19  employees.

         20                 Obviously, the Administration by

         21  their testimony earlier has concerns about some of

         22  the specifics on this bill, and I'd like to suggest

         23  that the Council convene a task force, it can be an

         24  informal task force, to look at some of the specific

         25  provisions of the bill.

                                                            85

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2                 The task force should certainly

          3  include the contracting community, the construction

          4  unions and all our members are unionized

          5  contractors, OSHA and the relevant City agencies,

          6  including not only Buildings Department but also the

          7  design and construction and other agencies to come

          8  up with some specific language so that we can

          9  achieve the shared goals of our bill, of this bill,

         10  and I think we all share in the goals of the bill.

         11  We'd like to work with the Council to make something

         12  like this happen.

         13                 So, I want to thank you, Councilman

         14  Vallone, for your efforts to get this bill moving in

         15  this Committee and through the Council.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you, Mr.

         17  Elmer. We absolutely appreciate your support on

         18  this. And my counsel, Ted Baecher, will be reaching

         19  out to you for your assistance in improving this

         20  bill. The Administration has some suggestions. We

         21  have all the same goal here.

         22                 MR. ELMER: Okay.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: We're not going

         24  to do it right now because some of us have to go

         25  over to Environmental Protection and take a vote
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          2  right now.

          3                 Let me just commend the Council

          4  members who have stayed to the very end, despite the

          5  fact that this is petitioning period, they are here

          6  til the very end of the testimony and they should be

          7  commended for that.

          8                 MR. ELMER: Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: We look forward

         10  to working with you. Thank you for taking the time.

         11                 Thank you, all my fellow Council

         12  members, for staying here to the end, and this

         13  meeting is adjourned.

         14                 (Hearing concluded at 11:44 a.m.)
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